



# Urban Montessori Charter School

# **Minutes**

# Regular Board Meeting

#### **Date and Time**

Thursday August 27, 2020 at 6:15 PM

#### Location

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5102904005

PER GOVERNOR NEWSOM'S SHELTER IN PLACE EXECUTIVE ORDER DATED MARCH 19, 2020 (WHICH IS HERE IN ITS ENTIRETY) AND BY ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA DATED JUNE 5, 2020 (Revised June 18, 2020 and July 19, 2020) (WHICH IS HERE IN ITS ENTIRETY):

THIS WILL BE A VIRTUAL-ONLY MEETING

Join Zoom Meeting: <a href="https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5102904005">https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5102904005</a>

Meeting ID: 510 290 4005

One tap mobile <u>+16699006833</u>,,5102904005# US (San Jose) <u>+13462487799</u>,,5102904005# US (Houston) Dial by your location <u>+1 669 900 6833</u> US (San Jose) <u>+1 346 248 7799</u> US (Houston) <u>+1 253 215 8782</u> US (Tacoma) <u>+1 312 626 6799</u> US (Chicago) <u>+1 929 436 2866</u> US (New York) <u>+1 301 715 8592</u> US (Germantown) Meeting ID: 510 290 4005 Find your local number: <a href="https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kb8IDmVDDD">https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kb8IDmVDDD</a>

Important Notice: Due to increased demand, dial-in by phone audio conferencing capabilities may be unavailable. During this time, Zoom strongly recommends using computer audio capabilities (or via phone with the Zoom app) while on wifi.

If you have any trouble getting on the Zoom, please text 510-290-4005 for support.

Members: Loren Bentley Tammero, Olivia Couch, Jan Faraguna, Christina Greenberg, Greg Klein, Davis Leung, Nancy McAfee Flemming, Hae-Sin Thomas, Stacey Wang

Urban Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the Board of Directors ("Board") is to conduct the affairs of the organization in public. Your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our school and assists the Board in making the best decisions for our school. To assist you in the ease of speaking/participating in our meetings, guidelines are provided at the bottom of this agenda. All materials for all board and committee meetings, including audio recordings of Regular Board Meetings, are available via on our <a href="BoardOnTrack public portal">BoardOnTrack public portal</a> and is also accessible via the UMCS School Calendar.

#### **Directors Present**

D. Leung (remote), G. Klein (remote), H. Thomas (remote), J. Faraguna (remote), L. Bentley Tammero (remote), N. McAfee Flemming (remote), O. Couch (remote), S. Wang (remote)

#### **Directors Absent**

C. Greenberg

#### **Guests Present**

D. Bissonnette (remote), K. Feeney (remote)

#### I. Opening Items

#### A. Call the Meeting to Order

D. Leung called a meeting of the board of directors of Urban Montessori Charter School to order on Thursday Aug 27, 2020 at 6:18 PM.

#### **B.** Record Attendance

#### C. Review of Action/Discussion Items

No changes.

# D. Board and Community Appreciations

Krishna appreciated teachers and staff for all their time and work, and love, energy, and care to launching this school year.

Olivia also appreciated teachers on this amazing transition to a totally different thing. And to Admin for all the summer work. And to all the parents working hard to support their students at home. And to students working so hard.

Loren also shared similar appreciations -- for teachers, and administrators, to parents and kids.

Parent Kara added on a particular appreciation for special education staff.

#### E. Board Member Comment

Greg updated the board that we recently received a public records request.

#### F. Presentations from the Floor

No public comment on non-agendized items.

# II. Head of School Report

# A. Head of School Report

The slides of the report are on the "Documents" section for this meeting on Board on Track.

Upcoming assessments and trainings for assessments later in August and September. DIBELS across the entire school, and upcoming NWEA assessment as well. Future engagement on Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan on September 3. Family Nights getting scheduled -- all will be on the calendar.

Summer PD included anti-bias anti-racist training, Montessori at a Distance, staff planning.

Learning everywhere! 406 currently enrolled -- still fluctuates, attendance at 97.4% so far this year.

Mr. Bagaason showed the middle school classroom, new humanities teacher at the school, from Minneapolis. Shared about setting community agreements with students, and about some of the student work during the opening weeks of school.

For current enrollment, the school continues to closely reflect Oakland's racial groups and percentages.

Ms. Krishna shared about a summer strategic planning process. Lots of helpful templates and support, much of which facilitated the back to school Learning Everywhere plan. Still much more to do in terms of longer term strategic planning, along with full and complete engagements with all stakeholder groups.

Staffing -- 91% of all current staff returned from last year. (so 9% new this year). Ms. Krishna shared staff position updates.

Hae-Sin asked for demographic data for the staff. Krishna agreed and is missing data, so needs further collection for future meeting.

Greg and Stacey shared acknowledgements for all the work and appreciations.

Jan asked about device access. Krishna shared that not all devices have been delivered -- not all kids have \*great\* access, but kids do have something right now, and it will improve as delivery happens. #OaklandUndivided devices have arrived, and are being deployed. Parents can still complete the Tech Check to get a free device.

Hae-Sin asked for a specific number of needed devices right now. Kids have something, but want to get them better options right away. Hae-Sin commented about the option of buying devices from OUSD and will follow up on that idea.

No public comment.

# III. Public Hearing - Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

# A. Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

Davis opened the public hearing on the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan.

Krishna shared about what the LCP is, where it comes from, and what it must include.

Daniel shared the Guiding Principles of the Learning Everywhere program -- the distance-learning portion of the LCP. There's a slide deck in the "Documents" section of this meeting on BoardOnTrack.

Daily and weekly schedule is very similar over time. Feedback from Spring was to make it all more predictable. Also, aligned schedules across a level, and when lessons will be given on what content -- major support for when teachers are absent -- kids get an updated zoom link and can still attend an academic lesson at the same time! Nearly 9,000 assignments turned in over 9 days of school...Almost half of all families have already accessed Seesaw and seeing student work, too.

Daniel shared about the work being done in classrooms at each Level.

Daniel shared about how the school will keep track of student engagement daily in instructional minutes offered, along with attendance. Krishna shared a focus of understanding students with the most need and then meeting those needs. Daniel shared how a teacher's schedule allows for teachers to pull two ad hoc small groups each day, in addition to daily leveled lessons for all students. Support teachers also have tiered supports in their schedule.

For families, teachers holding office hours, administration is holding office hours, future family information nights, tiered technology support.

Again, so many appreciations for all.

Greg shared about the process and timeline for future work on the plan, and adoption next month, and then ask about the return to in-person learning. Krishna responded that much of the distance learning plans are designed so that they can flow back into inperson school -- like still using Seesaw, and aligning lessons and schedules across classrooms.

Hae-Sin commented it's really important to focus precious teacher time on students most in need, and that may be the template for future learning back in a school building -- maintaining that same focus.

Parent Jeremy shared that the school "Nailed it" -- so much growth in my son. Hopes that some of the distance learning going on right now never goes away, even after the pandemic.

Olivia appreciated the information about the work at each developmental Level. Appreciates the daily tasks. The amount of screen time can be a lot, so glad to know there are options away from screen.

Daniel shared about setting expectations for the amount of work, and then opening up to larger, longer projects over time. Olivia wondered about helping kids managing technology plus other learning -- focus on one or the other at a time.

No other comments, Davis closed the public hearing.

# **IV. Finance Committee**

#### A. Discussion Item - Committee Report, including year to date financial report

[See Documents for last year's unaudited actuals, and presentation slides in BoardOnTrack]

Alejandra shared how FY 2019-2020 ended with a positive \$7k operating income.

Hae-Sin asked about the cash balance, and when we might know whether the PPP loan will be a loan or whether it will be reclassified as a grant. We are actively monitoring to see whether there will be automatic forgiveness for loans under \$2M. We expect to find out more about proposed legislation in the next 2 weeks. It is a loan.

FY2020-2021 forecast update through end of July 2020. We currently show an increase in operating income in the forecast as some funding for education has been restored and

there has been one time funding instituted. Therefore, we currently have an increase in our budgeted income from \$6k to a new updated forecast of \$101K.

Stacey left the call at 7:33. Stacey returned to the call at 7:38. Jan asked about the timing of when LLM funds have to spent by, and we anticipate to spend by December 2020.

2020-2021 budget comparison of forecast to adopted budget. Having a positive income is important as we would like our fund balance to build up in order to have a "rainy day" fund.

Daniel shared about the new Quest Foundation \$25k challenge grant being awarded. Thank you, Quest! We have a \$78k goal for our families to give to the school this year across all fundraising, those donations will help us meet the match as they come in.

Krishna shared about the Plant sale fundraiser this Saturday. Come buy plants!!

Alejandra shared more about the latest current assumptions and open items related to future budget forecasts.

State deferrals refer to funds that are earned this year that will be paid in the following fiscal year. If every current assumption/variable goes the "wrong" way, then cash may be a problem early in the 2021-2022 fiscal year.

Prop 51. We have had ongoing discussions around a facility use agreement to go before the OUSD board. We are supposed to have the offer by December in order to be on time for the state's bond sale. Prop 51 funds have been awarded to UMCS by the state, but the funds can only be accessible if we have a long term leases in place, and only spent on an OUSD-owned facility -- so OUSD benefits, too. We are continuing our efforts to get a long term lease in place (currently at the Tilden/John Swett campus).

No other questions or public comment.

#### B. Vote on updated 2020-2021 Annual Budget

- G. Klein made a motion to approve the current forecast as the updated budget.
- J. Faraguna seconded the motion.

No further discussion or public comment.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### **Roll Call**

N. McAfee Flemming Aye

O. Couch Aye

G. Klein Aye

L. Bentley Tammero Aye

#### **Roll Call**

J. Faraguna Aye
S. Wang Aye
H. Thomas Aye
C. Greenberg Absent
D. Leung Aye

# V. Academic Oversight Committee

# A. Discussion Item - Committee Report

Hae-Sin gave a report for the committee. The committee spent time learning about the Learning Everywhere plan, and appreciated again the staff. In this crisis, it's important to live our values that equal is not equitable, and we need to give more to those who need more. Hae-Sin shared how the work of presenting a strong case for renewal and supporting our currently lowest performing subgroups -- growth data, and also student and family satisfaction. We must share data that shows us dramatically closing achievement gaps. It's not the year to save money just to save, if we're not delivering on education for students who most need it then instead must invest on behalf of kids. Good alignment from the committee and staff on the goals of serving student subgroups most in need.

Stacey offered Finance committee's support. Davis thanked the committee for the renewed energy.

Parent Anna asked about the committee schedule. All on the calendar!

No other public comment.

#### **VI. Family Advisory Council**

#### A. Committee Report

Loren shared the FAC report. Met in August and focused on supporting community with distance learning. Helping people get set up and comfortable with Konstella, and also outreach to families to get new room parents, FAC members, and volunteers. Planned meeting next with FAC and Room parents.

Biggest concern now is figuring out how the FAC will do its work remotely, i.e., not meeting at pick up and drop off times. Sent out survey last weekend to collect feedback on the first week and identify anyone who still needed help with something, and also what was working well and not working well.

Loren shared some data on the feedback survey [in the Documents section of this meeting on BoardOnTrack.] 76 respondents, 10 folks needed more help with something

and FAC is already reaching out to them. 19 respondents only had positive appreciations to share.

Greg asked about supporting kids to make connections with other kids during the day. Hae-Sin responded about pairing students and giving them a choice.

Loren asked about if the support teacher zooms are working to support the spontaneous connections and it is some ways -- can put kids into breakout rooms to work together.

Parent Jeremy asked about virtual Back to School Night. Krishna responded about wanting to collaborate with FAC on that.

No other public comment.

#### VII. Executive & Governance Committee

# A. Discussion Item: Committee Updates, including candidates for board service, Form 700, and training

Board assessments. BOARD MEMBERS, PLEASE COMPLETE YOUR BOARD ASSESSMENT!!

Training opportunities available for Board Members. Please attend a training at your earliest convenience. Slides have been added and more trainings are being calendared.

Please fill out your Form 700. A wet signature copy should be sent to Yolanda Bullock at Steele Street.

# B. Recognizing and Celebrating Nancy McAfee Flemming and her service to UMCS

Nancy McAffee Flemming has served UMCS since before the first day of school. She has been a parent, board member, board officer, committee member, she has been through the highs and the lows. So, we as a board and a community member cant say enough thanks!!! Greg, Hae-Sin, Davis, Krishna, Stacey, Jan, Loren, all shared personal stories of appreciation for Nancy.

Nancy challenged the Board to stay focused on the kids who need us the most -- and to be specific about serving Black children, not forcing them to grow up to fast or treat them as adults, and also to support the needs of English Language Learners, Foster Youth, and other students with documented needs.

#### C. Action Item - Discuss and vote on renewal term for Hae-Sin Thomas

- G. Klein made a motion to Renew Hae-Sin's Terms as a Board Member.
- N. McAfee Flemming seconded the motion.

#### None.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

#### **Roll Call**

S. Wang Aye H. Thomas Abstain G. Klein Aye N. McAfee Flemming Aye C. Greenberg Absent D. Leung Aye J. Faraguna Aye O. Couch Aye L. Bentley Tammero Aye

# D. Discuss and vote on Board Officers, committee chairs, and committee members for 2020-2021

No action needed at this time.

#### **VIII. Other Business**

# A. Oakland and California Updates

Hae-Sin shared that there is an upcoming school board election in November. We shared our directory information so we can help support register eligible voters, and then support folks to actually vote. We are legally allowed to support people to register and vote. We do not tell people \*how\* they should vote -- that's their decision. Voter education is important.

Lots of frustration from parents across the city with schools writ large. Many wondering about amounts of synchronous and asynchronous instruction. Our local experience at UMCS may be a lot different than what is happening other places.

Lots of misinformation about profit and nonprofit schools, and it's important that families have the facts. Nonprofit charter run schools are public schools. We are accountable every five years through renewals, and follow all other relevant public/sunshine/good governance laws, just like school districts must do.

Loren asked about what engagements might look like. Hae-Sin responded about possible upcoming communications, or engaging the FAC with voter registration campaigns at school events, or promoting candidate forums for parents to participate in. Many families are not eligble to participate by voting but they still need quality schools. Folks need to understand the facts and vote.

No other public comment.

B.

# Approve Minutes from July 31, 2020 Special Meeting

J. Faraguna made a motion to approve the minutes from UMCS Special Board Meeting on 07-31-20.

L. Bentley Tammero seconded the motion.

No comments or public comment.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### **Roll Call**

N. McAfee Flemming Aye H. Thomas Aye S. Wang Aye J. Faraguna Aye C. Greenberg Absent G. Klein Aye L. Bentley Tammero Aye D. Leung Aye O. Couch Aye

# C. Action Item - Vote on General Consent Report

- D. Leung made a motion to approve the General Consent Report.
- S. Wang seconded the motion.

Greg earlier clarified that the correct link for the Employee Handbook COVID-19 addendum is

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1z6sp2u2Kb64FZaDFxgmRntQoEcnx548j18HTsKAI3Y0/edit (Handbook was accidentally linked twice on the agenda.)

No public comment.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### **Roll Call**

N. McAfee Flemming Aye D. Leung Aye O. Couch Aye J. Faraguna Aye G. Klein Aye H. Thomas Aye C. Greenberg Absent S. Wang Aye L. Bentley Tammero Aye

# D. Collect New Business items for Future Meetings

No new specific items at this time.

#### IX. Closed Session

A.

# Public Employee Performance Evaluation - Head of School

Davis made an announcement that the Board would go into Closed Session on both topics.

# B. Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation

#### X. Return to Open Session

# A. Report out of any closed session action(s)

Davis reported that no action was taken by the Board during Closed Session.

# XI. Closing Items

# A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:45 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

G. Klein

# Documents used during the meeting

- UMCS-August Presentation.pdf
- UMCS-Updated Budget and Draft July Financials-20200818.pdf
- 2020-8-18-CCSA YMC Governance Academy Part 1 FINAL.pdf
- 2020-8-19-CCSA YMC Governance Academy Part 2 FINAL.pdf
- Invoice INV000049261.pdf
- UMCS-FY20\_Year\_End\_Accruals.pdf
- revfoodcn2020-21.pdf
- UMCS-CARS Submission FY21.pdf

THE ORDER OF BUSINESS MAY BE CHANGED WITHOUT NOTICE Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

REASONABLE LIMITATIONS MAY BE PLACED ON PUBLIC TESTIMONY The Governing Board's presiding officer reserves the right to impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS MAY BE MADE Notice is hereby given that, consistent with the requirements of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, special presentations not mentioned in the

agenda may be made at this meeting. However, any such presentation will be for information only.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION WILL BE PROVIDED FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting of the Governing Board may request assistance by contacting UMCS at 4551 Steele Street, Oakland, CA 94619 or <a href="mailto:info@urbanmontessori.org">info@urbanmontessori.org</a>.

FOR MORE INFORMATION For more information concerning this agenda or for materials relating to this meeting, please contact UMCS at 4551 Steele Street, Oakland, CA 94619 or board@urbanmontessori.org. All materials are available via the Governance Section of our website: <a href="http://www.urbanmontessori.org/governance">http://www.urbanmontessori.org/governance</a> or directly via our <a href="mailto:BoardOnTrack public portal">BoardOnTrack public portal</a>.